WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

CAVERSWALL, vulgarly called Careswell,  is a pleasant, but irregularly built village, near the source of the river Blythe, 3 ½ miles W. by S. of Cheadle, and 7 miles E. by S. of Newcastle-under-Lyme; being only about a mile N. of Blythe Bridge Station on the North Staffordshire Railway.  Its parish is divided into two townships of Caverswall and 

Weston - Coyney with Hulme, which support their poor conjointly, and contain 1505 inhabitants, and about 5380 acres of land, of which 1570 acres and 567 souls are in Caverswall, and 3810 acres and 938 souls in Weston - Coyney and Hulme. T. H. Parker, Esq., is principal owner, and lord of the manor of Caverswall; and Charles Coyney, Esq., of Weston – Coyney and Hulme.  Caverswall has two annual fairs for horses, cattle, and swine, held on the second Thursdays in April and October.  The most remarkable object in the village is CAVERSWALL CASTLE,  founded in the reign of Edward II. by Sir William de Caverswall, who surrounded it by extensive ponds and a deep moat, with a draw – bridge.  The heads of the ponds had square turrets, as a further defence of the place.  It was a large and strongly - built fortress, but was suffered to go to decay early in the 17th century, when it was purchased by Matthew Cradock, Esq., who rebuilt it on a plan more suitable for a family residence, but preserved the outer wall and the moat, the latter of which is now crossed by a stone bridge.  The present castle is an extensive mansion, with a high keep, and four towers at the angles of the main building.  It was for some time the property of the Hon. Booth Grey, who sold it to a Mr. Brett; but it is now a Nunnery, being purchased, with 20 acres of land adjacent to it, by a small convent of Benedictine nuns, who fled from Ghent, in Flanders, during the Revolution, and settled in Preston, in Lancashire, where they remained upwards of 16 years, but removed to Caverswall in 1811, being then 16 in number. Here are at present 30 nuns, and Miss A. Foster is the lady abbess.  Their support is chiefly derived from the education of young ladies, belonging to Roman Catholic parents, and they have now about 30 pupils.  The Rev. William Jones is the priest.  Caverswall Church is a neat structure, near the castle, rebuilt about two centuries ago by Matthew Cradock, and dedicated to St. Peter.  It is in the Early English style, and contains many monuments of the Parker family, one of which is in memory of the Countess St. Vincent, who died in 1816.  T. H. Parker, Esq., is impropriator of the corn tithes, and patron of the vicarage, valued in K.B. at £7. 5s. 5d., and now at £240, in the incumbency of the Rev. Alexander Goode, who has a neat residence.  The Wesleyans have a small chapel in Caverswall, and the New Connexion Methodists have one at Wherrington.  The wake is on the nearest Sunday to St. Peter’s day.

   CHARITIES. – With £130, bequeathed by John and Ralph Brown in 1655 and 1669, about 14 acresof lnad was purchased at Forsbrook, now let for £30 a year, of which £2. 10s. is paid to the minister for preaching sermons on St. John’s day and December 13th, and the remainder is divided among the poor parishioners on the same days.  Gilbert Hart left nearly an acre of land at Dilhorne, for the poor of Caverswall, and is now let for 50s.  They have also an annuity of 10s. out of Pryor’s Leys in Milwich, left by Ralph Bayley.  In 1832, the late Miss Parker bequeathed to the poor £200 now vested in four per cent. annuities.  The late Joseph Wilshaw left the interest of £200 for 20 poor widows, and of £100 for repairing the church.  He also left £2 a year for the clerk and sexton.  The National School was built by subscription in 1824, on land given by T. H. Parker, Esq. Twenty of the scholars are taught free.

   Cellar Head, a hamlet 3 miles N. of Caverswall, is partly in Cheddleton parish, and has two annual fairs for horses, cattle, and sheep, held on May 5th, and the first Thursday in November.  A few houses in the scattered hamlet of Meir near Lane end, are in Caverswall parish.

 Weston – Coyney and Hulme are two neighbouring hamlets forming a manor, one mile West of Caverswall, and including the hamlets of Adderley and Wherrington; the latter of which is on the Cheadle road, 4 miles East of Hanley and 1½  mile North of Hulme.  In the manor are three gentlemen’s seats, viz., Weston-Coyney Hall, the seat of Charles Coyney, Esq., the lord of the manor; Adderley House, the residence of Mrs. Walklate; and Park Hall, the seat of Thomas Hawe Parker, Esq.



CAVERSWALL.

   (2 are at Cookshill, and 3 at Meir.)

3 Barns William victualler King’s Arms

Foster Miss Ann, abbess, Castle

Bullock Samuel, victualler Red House

Goode Rev. Alex vicar, (abroad)

3 Heath Thomas, joiner

Jones Rev. William (Catholic,) Castle

Lakin Thomas, butcher and victualler Green Man

2 Lees George, blacksmith

Leigh Rev. Francis, B.A. curate, Vicarage

2 Mosley George, corn miller

Read Alfred, police officer

Rothwell Thomas, schoolmaster

Sargent William, grocer and draper

2 Slinn John, blacksmith

Thorley William wheelwright

3 Walters John, butcher and cattle dealer

3 Whiston Joseph, attorney’s clerk

Farmers

3 Bailey Ann

2 Barlow Thomas

3 Ball Timothy

Boulton Ralph

Bradbury William

Burgess Mrs

Burgess Peter

Burgess William T.

3 Fallows Thomas

Fielding Thomas

3 Glover James

2 Heath Robert, Hall

2 Hughes James

Keen George

2 Marson William

2 Mosley George

Nicklin James

2 Phillips William, and butcher

3 Shaw John

Shoemakers

Abberley Thomas

Miller Thomas parish clerk

Oram William

Tailors

Austin Stephen

Hulme Joseph

Wood Benjamin

Railway Trains from Blythe Bridge

   WESTON-COYNEY and HULME

Marked 1 are at Adderley green; 2, Hulme; 3, Wherrington; and 4, at Cellar Head.

Buckley John, corn miller

2 Bull William blacksmith

Coyney Charles, Esq. Weston-Coyney Hall  

3 Cooper Samuel, schoolmaster

Hicks Richard Esq. guano merchant etc Fox Earth

Keen George butler and Mrs Ann Broster, house keeper, Park Hall

Parker Thomas Hawe, Esq. Park Hall

3 Prince John, tailor

1 Pye Thomas, coal master

3 Reeves Thomas, joiner, etc

Slinn George, blacksmith

1 Stirrup and Pye, coal masters

2 Walker John, farrier, etc.

Walklate Mrs Elizabeth, Adderley House

Inns and taverns

1 Bird-in-hand, Samuel Robinson

2 Coyney’s Arms, William Hurst

4 Hope and Anchor, Thomas Heath

3 Red Cow, L. Clarkson, butcher

1 Waggon and Horses, Joseph Simcox

3 Wind Mill, Mark Greatbatch, miller

Beerhouses, William Bentley and John Lees

 Farmers

Beardmore Theophilus

Bradbury James

Brookes John

2 Davis Joseph, and butcher

2 Finney John

1 Forrister George

Hassall Daniel

2 Heath George

Heath William

3 Lees Gabriel

Poyser Jonathan

2 Shaw Anthony
2 Shaw James and Stephen
2 Shaw Ralph

2 Smith John

2 Wain Mrs
2 Walklate Thomas

Walters Anthony cattle dealer Blythe House

Wardle John

2 Wright Thomas

Shopkeepers

1 Daniel George

3 Downes John

3 Greatbatch Mark

3 Lees John

4 Shenton Thomas

SCC 101 WSL Filing

